
MINUTES OF THE KENT COUNTY LEVY COURT 
BUSINESS MEETING 

KENT COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLEX 
555 BAY ROAD, DOVER, DE 

LEVY COURT CHAMBER, ROOM 203 
TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 27, 2018 

Call to Order 

The Business Meeting of the Kent County Levy Court was called to order at 
7:00 p.m. by President Banta. 

Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance 

The Invocation was led by Mr. Howell and the Pledge of Allegiance was led by 
Mr. Angel. 

Moment of Silence for our Troops 

A moment of silence was observed for our Troops and led by Mr. Sweeney. 

Roll call and Determination of Quorum 

Allan F. Angel 
Eric L. Buckson 
James E. Hosfelt, Jr. 
Glen M. Howell 
Terry L. Pepper 
George W. Sweeney, Sr. 
P. Brooks Banta 

Commissioner 
Commissioner 
Commissioner 
Commissioner 
Vice President 
Commissioner 
President 
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There are seven (7) Commissioners present at roll call. 

Mr. Banta: Next item is the Adoption of the Agenda. Before we do that there's 
two items that have been removed; item number two and number three under 
Mr. Angel ' s motion, there ' s a delay in action on that particular item. With that 
being said, need a motion to adopt the Agenda as amended. 

Adoption of Agenda 

Motion to approve the Amended Agenda as presented was made by Mr. Angel; 
seconded by Mr. Sweeney; carried by roll call vote seven (7) yeas. 

Motion to approve Meeting Minutes of Tuesday, February 13, 2018 and Tuesday, 
February 20, 2018 was made by Mr. Sweeney; seconded by Mr. Pepper; carried 
by roll call vote six ( 6) yeas; one (1) not voting. 

PRESENTATIONS 

Kathy Phinney read the following into the record: 

1. Employee of the Month - March 2018 

Kent County Department Heads have selected Angela G. Wise from the 
Department of Finance as the March 2018 Employee of the Month. 

Angie has worked for Kent County since July 1995 and serves as an Account 
Specialist III. Her primary duties include complex bookkeeping tasks such as 
assuring accurate payment of invoices, verifying compliance with County 
procurement rules, reconciling bank statements, and maintaining cash 
disbursement and receipt journals and ledgers. 

Angie is praised by her supervisors for her ability to complete multiple tasks in a 
fast paced working environment. She also excels as a trainer on the accounts 
payable system for new staff members. More importantly, over the years Angie 
has cultivated and maintained trusting working relationships with the various 
County departments, which results in prompt attention of the responsible direct 
and indirect cost center funding authority. 

According to Finance Director Susan Durham, "Angie is an exemplary member of 
the Finance team and over the years she has mastered the accounting software 
with respect to accounts payable. She is dependable and has attained a level of 
initiative and proficiency that requires minimal follow-up by senior staff." 

Congratulations Angie on a job well done! 
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Kent County Levy Court 
March 2018 Employee of the Month 

Angela G. Wise 
On this, the 27th day of February 2018, 

the Levy Court of 
Kent County, State of Delaware, does hereby recognize 

Angela G. Wise 
Account Specialist III 

Department of Finance 
for her exceptional initiative, dedication, and conscientiousness in 

the delivery of services to the citizenry of the County. 

02/27/2018 

Angela, accompanied by Susan Durham was met at the front of Chambers by the 
Commissioners and County Administrator for presentation of the award, 
congratulatory remarks and photos. 

Mr. Banta: So, it looks like 23 years, is that correct? Twenty-three years. So, 
Susan must be doing something right to keep you here, I don't know what that 
could be because sometimes she's not always ... But, anyway we appreciate you 
being here. I'm sure that Susan will want to ... In fact I'm going to let her speak 
next because I'm sure she' ll want to say something about me because I just said 
something about her. Congratulations for receiving this award and coming in 
December you might get a check for $500.00. 

Ms. Durham: I just want to say that Angie is quite an asset to our department. I 
feel like I've been with Angie ever since she was a baby. She started here in Kent 
County almost out of High School in the engineering department, went to 
comptrollers and then went over to finance, so she's been in our area her whole 
career. She's a pleasure; she's got a great sense of humor, a very quick wit. 
She's my competition there. She's a good time and does a great job. I appreciate 
her very, very much. 

Mr. Buckson: Angie, I appreciate you being here and everything they said and all 
the things on the paper, well done. Appreciate you letting me put your daughter 
through some of the conditioning practices we do over at Poly Tech. Does she 
like to run just as much? Anyway, congratulations, very well done. 

Mr. Angel: Yes, Angie, congratulations. Because you work for Susan, if you are 
the winner make sure she doesn't get her fingers on it first. She's very good 
about watching money. I'm sure you learned good from her. 

Mr. Pepper: Kent County's Finance Department is probably second to none and 
you being part of that and you getting this honor this month speaks volumes about 
you. Congratulations and thank you. 
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Mr. Howell: So you've been with us 23 years? Very good, well I'm glad we 
have you and I'm sure you deserve this recognition. 

Mr. Sweeney: Angie, everything that they've said, congratulations. Someone to 
have moved through the departments like you have, you have great knowledge of 
the County which I'm sure serves you well with Susan. Susan, you've got a great 
asset here; let's try and keep it around. 

Mr. Hosfelt: Angie, thank you for everything you do. To receive an honor like 
this at 23 plus years into your career, 22 plus years obviously speaks volumes for 
you so thank you for everything you do. 

Mr. Petit de Mange: Angie, congratulations; on behalf of your County employees 
I just want to extend the hand of congratulations. A lot of nice things have been 
said. Angie's also a big Garth Brooks fan; I just happen to know this because she 
tracks me down a lot to get things signed and we have these exchanges about 
music. I know Garth is a big part of your life so welcome to the dance, I know 
this isn't your first rodeo and maybe this is your answer to unanswered prayers, 
I'm not sure. Twenty-three years, you're much too young for that. Ask me how I 
know, I'm not sure but I hope you get two pina coladas, so congratulations. 

Mr. Banta: I'm not too sure where the County Administrator got all those details 
but he must have done some serious research into your background, anyway 
congratulations on receiving Employee of the Month for the Month of March. It's 
now your opportunity to make any comments you may want to make. 

Ms. Wise: I just want to say thank you. I appreciate it. 

Mr. Banta: Well, you' re certainly welcome. Susan, why don't you come over 
here and we'll make this presentation together. 

The following was read into the record by Kathy Phinney: 

2. Resolution 3674, Retirement of Mark R. Jacobs 

Whereas, the retirement of Mark R. Jacobs, an employee of Kent County, State 
of Delaware, from his duties as Housing & Community Development 
Specialist, in the Planning Services Department, presents a suitable 
opportunity for expressing the esteem in which we hold Mark R. Jacobs, 
as a good and faithful public servant. 

Therefore, be it resolved that the County of Kent express its warmest 
appreciation and thanks to Mark R. Jacobs for the able and loyal manner 
in which he performed his public duties. 

Be it further resolved that this resolution be his evidence of a right to the 
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pension provided by the Kent County Employees' Retirement Program; and 
that this Resolution be and hereby is incorporated into the official minutes 
of the February 27,201 8 meeting of the Kent County Levy Court. 

Motion to approve Resolution 3674 was made by Mr. Pepper; seconded by 
Mr. Sweeney; carried by roll call vote seven (7) yeas. 

Ms. Phinney read the following into the record: 

3. Resolution 3677, Retirement of Frances S. Gunning 

Retirement of Frances S. Gunning 

Whereas, the retirement of Frances S. Gunning, an employee of Kent County, 
State of Delaware, from her duties as Library Technician II, Department of 
Community Services, presents a suitable opportunity for expressing the 
esteem in which we hold Frances S. Gunning, as a good and faithful 
public servant. 

Therefore, be it resolved that the County of Kent express its warmest 
appreciation and thanks to Frances S. Gunning for the able and loyal manner in 
which she performed her public duties. 

Be it further resolved that this resolution be her evidence of a right to the 
pension provided by the Kent County Employees' Retirement Program; and 
that this Resolution be and hereby is incorporated into the official minutes 
of the February 27, 2018 meeting of the Kent County Levy Court. 

Mr. Sweeney Moved to approve Resolution 3677; seconded by Mr. Angel; 
carried by roll call vote seven (7) yeas. 

Mr. Banta: It would be good to point out that in regard to Mark Jacobs, he'd been 
with us for 29 years and Francis Gunning had been with us for 15 ½ years so, 
long-standing employees. 

INTRODUCTIONS 

Mr. Kujala: Thank you, Mr. President. We do have one new employee to 
introduce to the Levy Court. And on behalf of Chief Colin Faulkner, Director of 
Public Safety, the Assistant Director Kevin Sipple will do the honors. 

Mr. Sipple: Good evening, Commissioners. I'd like to take this time to introduce 
our newest hire. Jared T. Russell was hired February 20, 2018 as a Dispatcher I 
in the Division of Emergency Communications in the Department of Public 
Safety. Jared most recently worked with Hart to Heart Ambulance as an 
Emergency Medical Technician - Basic and as a Driver for the company. He 
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continues to work as a Firefighter/EMT-B with the Little Creek Volunteer Fire 
Company. Jared brings several years of emergency communications experience to 
his new position. Jared currently resides in Commissioners Angel's and Pepper's 
districts. 

Mr. Russell: I'd like to thank you guys for the opportunity to be here and I'm 
very excited. I'm looking forward to many years with the County. 

Mr. Banta: Welcome aboard, Jared. 

Mr. Pepper: Jared, welcome aboard. We met just prior to the meeting here. 
Looking at your background both as an EMT and dispatching and firefighter I'm 
sure you' ll be very competent right from the get-go once you get behind the radio, 
answering the phones or whatever you'll be doing. So congratulations and best of 
luck and we do look forward to you being an employee here for a long time. 
Welcome to the Levy Court family. 

Mr. Russell: I appreciate it. 

Mr. Angel: Yes, Jared, welcome to the family of Kent County. I'm sure working 
with Scott Bundek of Little Creek has been an experience that's helped you, too. 
And I'm sure that everything that you've learned will be needed and utilized with 
your life skills. Thank you for joining us. 

Mr. Russell: Thank you. 

At this point in the proceedings Mr. Sweeney introduced Noah Cheney, a Poly 
Tech student and Eagle Scout who was present in the Levy Court Chambers. 
Noah, who was accompanied by his grandfather, William Fowler was there to 
observe a public government meeting, a requirement in earning an Eagle Scout 
badge. 

NEW BUSINESS 

Mr. Angel: 
1. I Move to appoint Diana Golt as Director of Public Works (County 

Engineer) for Kent County effective February 25, 2018 and set her 
compensation at Grade 19, Step G+, waive any requirement to maintain 
Private Nutrient Handler certification, and provide immediate pension and 
retiree benefits eligibility upon solicited termination of her employment; 
seconded by Mr. Sweeney; carried by roll call vote seven (7) yeas. 

Mr. Pepper: 
1. I am pleased tonight to have two appointments to a couple of our boards. 

My first appointment is appointment of Brian Cusick to the Board of 
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Adjustment. Brian has served the Building Code Review Committee for 
the past seven years and with a vacancy in the Board of Adjustment I'm 
moving him to that position. I make a Motion to accept Brian Cusick to 
the Board of Adjustment; seconded by Mr. Howell; carried by roll call 
vote seven (7) yeas. 

My second appointment, as you all know I lost my appointment to the 
Regional Planning Commission with Mr. Pusey's passing last month so 
that left a vacancy on the Regional Planning Commission. What I've done 
is moved Mr. David Peterman who's been representing me on the Board 
of Adjustment to the Regional Planning Commission. He's represented 
me on the Board of Adjustment for the past seven years and I think he has 
the knowledge and will be very able-bodied to move on into this position. 
I make a Motion to approve David Peterman to the Regional Planning 
Commission; seconded by Mr. Angel; carried by roll call vote seven (7) 
yeas. 

Mr. Sweeney: 
1. Recreation Software: Merchant Services Agreement - Authorize.net 

Jeremy Sheppard: Thank you very much and good evening, Commissioners. 
I'm here seeking authorization to sign a Payment Gateway Merchant Service 
Agreement with a company called Authorize.net. Authorize.net is a company that 
is a part of the credit card processing system that would be attached to all our 
Recreation Registration software, Civic Rec. They perform in a role processing 
behind the scenes; they are kind of like a go-between, between the software and 
then the credit card processing company, which is Vantiv, which is our current 
credit card processing company for Parks and Recreation. This is a minor piece 
but it is still an important piece that we have authorized by Levy Court. The 
reason that it is before you today is because the company chooses to litigate and 
do all that stuff in California and per Code the County Attorney can not approve 
that, however I can bring it before Levy Court which I am doing tonight and 
seeking your authorization. As far as fiduciary responsibility with Levy Court, 
there are just some minor fees involved. As far as the set-up goes, about $49.00 
and then there are annual fees of ... A monthly fee, including a batching fee which 
is basically a .10 a day fee, then the processing fee which is .10 per transaction. 
I've estimated the yearly cost of that being about $800.00 depending on our 
transactions. In order to come up with that, I estimated what our transaction were 
over the last fiscal year, so $800.00 is about the amount but that is not going to be 
in your motion tonight. With that I'll take any questions. 

Motion by Mr. Sweeney to approve the Payment Gateway Merchant Service 
Agreement with Authorize.net, to function as the payment gateway merchant with 
Civic Plus, the approved recreation registration software, and further authorize the 
President of Levy Court to sign said agreement; seconded by Mr. Pepper; carried 
by roll call vote six ( 6) yeas; one (1) not voting. 
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PUBLIC HEARINGS 

Sarah Keifer stated these Public Hearings are being conducted for the purpose of 
giving the citizens of the County the opportunity to present testimony on the 
application and ordinances that are before the Levy Court. 

Everyone will have a chance to speak. All statements are to be made from the 
podium at the front of the room. For the record, please give your name and 
address. Copies of any written statements or exhibits used during the hearing 
should be presented to for identification and inclusion in the record. 

For each application before the Levy Court: 

1. The President of Levy Court will introduce the application; 

2. The Levy Court will then receive testimony from those in favor; 

3. Testimony will then be received from those who may be opposed. 

4. After everyone has had an opportunity to speak, the hearing on the 
application will be closed and the Levy Court will then take what action it 
deems appropriate. 

Levy Court's decision will be based upon public hearing testimony given at this 
meeting a recommendation submitted to the Levy Court by the Regional Planning 
Commission. I would ask that the recommendation be included, by reference, in 
the permanent record of the meeting established by the Clerk of the Peace. 

The Public Notice of the Hearing was published in the February 9, 2018 edition of 
the Delaware State News. 

Petition for Conditional Use Approval 

Mr. Buckson: 
1. Application#: C-17-07; Applicant & Owner: Kelsey Skeels (Gallo); 

Zoning District/ Proposed Use: AR (Agricultural Residential)/ Home 
Occupation for Firearms Broker (No Retail Sales); Area & Location/ 
ID#: 0.37+ acre on the north side of Marsh Branch Rd. (Co. Rd. 441), 
approximately 597' west of S. DuPont Hwy. (US Rt. 13), south of 
Farmington / MN-00-199.00-01-68.00-000 

Ms. Keifer: The first application before the Levy Court tonight is a Conditional 
Use, C-17-07. The application is for Home Occupation Firearms Broker, no retail 
sales. This site is .37 acre on the north side of Marsh Branch Road, west of Route 
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13, south of Farmington. It is outside the growth zone, zoned AR, Agricultural 
Residential. The Planning Commission took testimony on this application at their 
February 1st hearing and at their February 8th business meeting voted unanimously 
to recommend approval. I'm happy to answer any questions you might have. 

Public Hearing Open on Application# C-17-07 

In Favor 

Kelsey (Gallo) Skeels, 125 Marsh Branch Road 

Mr. Banta: So these questions are just in regard to the weapons that you are going 
to order in; are going to be stored on-site in that lOxlO storage room in the back 
of your house, is that ... ? 

Ms. Skeels: Yes, sir. I won't have any inventory on hand. I don' t know if 
you've purchased a firearm on-line before but they are still obviously required to 
be, have a background check run on them. By me obtaining this licensing I would 
be running a background check through the FBI. If that weapon was to be held 
because of that applicant not being approved immediately than I would have it 
stored in that shed in a safe, then it would be released if they were approved for it, 
it would be released to them, if not it would be returned. 

Mr. Banta: Okay and I saw that ATF had actually examined the lock. 

Ms. Skeels: Yes, sir. 

Mr. Banta: Is it just a regular padlock or is it a heavy duty padlock? 

Ms. Skeels: I have a few locks on this building. I intend to get more. When they 
came out they were okay with how everything was, however, they do have to 
come out again and approve it because it has been a certain amount of time. They 
have to approve it within 60 days of application and because of having to come to 
the Court that delayed it. So they do have to come out a second time and approve 
it based on their standards as well. 

Mr. Banta: Thank you for that. It might be important to have on the building 
since some weapons will be stored there or if you're telling me no weapons are 
stored there, than that's not necessary. 

Ms. Skeels: Just because the weapons would be stored there I'm going to put a 
security system, not necessarily an alarm system. I'm not required to but just for 
my own peace of mind. That's not something I want getting stolen, and of course 
the person purchasing the weapon and my neighbors and the rest of the County, 
so I would do that even though I am not required, I would plan on putting that up. 



10 02/27/2018 

Mr. Banta: I certainly respect that and you received a couple of letters of 
recommendation as well so we appreciate that for the record. Thank you for your 
time. Mr. Pepper? 

Mr. Pepper: Thank you, Mr. President, but you've covered just about everything 
I was going to ask. Thank you. 

Mr. Sweeney: Ms. Skeels, so the ATF has to come out and inspect again because 
it's been more than 60 days since they approved your application? Or since 
they first . . . 

Ms. Skeels: Since they received my application, sir. They have to approve or 
deny within 60 days. So they can' t just have something sitting there pending, so 
because of that I had to withdraw my application from them and they told me just 
go ahead, this was the last thing I need to do. Once I obtain this permit from the 
County then I'll reapply and they'll come out and do their inspection again. 

Mr. Sweeney: Okay, so based on that, Sarah, is there anything we could have 
done to expedite this, to help her out with that part of it? 

Ms. Keifer: This application is unusual; it ran into some unexpected barriers. 
The first is that these are typically administrative unless a neighbor expresses an 
objection to it. That's what triggered the hearing. The first hearing there was an 
attendance issue, the second hearing got snowed out. So there were a number of 
unforeseen circumstances, these don't typically take this long. 

Mr. Sweeney: So the snow out isn't that, wouldn't that be considered force 
majeure and we could have just given her an extension. I guess it wouldn't have 
mattered because it was the ATF who was going to be ... 

Ms. Keifer: That wasn't our deadline. 

Mr. Sweeney: Right, it wasn't our deadline. 

Ms. Skeels: Normally as she is saying, I would just apply and notify all my 
neighbors, however one neighbor objected to me having this business so because 
of that I had to come this far. Otherwise, it would have been an easy process. 

Mr. Sweeney: Moving forward, how often does the A TF inspect? 

Ms. Skeels: They can come out basically whenever they want however it does 
have to be certain times. Because with mine it is appointment only; I don't have 
storefront or store hours; they do have to come during the daytime, during 
business hours and they can only inspect the ... If I were to have a stock or 
inventory on hand, they couldn't inspect personal firearms, which is why you 
keep them separately. However, as we discussed, I wouldn't have inventory on 
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hand necessarily. But if they came at a day when I was holding a weapon then of 
course they would be at liberty to inspect that. 

Mr. Sweeney: Okay, thank you. 

Mr. Angel: As a firearms broker you're going to be dealing with lots of weapons; 
are you going to be dealing with assault weapons too? 

Ms. Skeels: Say that again, I'm sorry. 

Mr. Angel: Are you going to be dealing with assault weapons? 

Ms. Skeels: Can you define assault weapons? 

Mr. Angel: Well that's what I'd like to know. ARIS. 

Ms. Skeels: If they're legal in the State of Delaware, than yes. 

Mr. Angel: I know it is. I'm just asking if you're going to be dealing with them. 

Ms. Skeels: If someone were to order that than yes I would be. 

Mr. Angel: Including ... Well I understand where we're going with this so I'll just 
stop right there. 

Mr. Howell: I was going to ask you about ammunition. Is that part of the 
procurement and is it conceivable you could have certain firearms plus the 
appropriate ammunition stored at the same time in the storage building? 

Ms. Skeels: I don't intend to have any ammunition on hand. If someone were to 
order ammunition, that's not something that has to go through a licensed firearm 
dealer so for me to have ammunition on hand would not, from a business point 
make any sense. 

Mr. Hosfelt: Ma'am, could you tell us as a broker are you held to the same 
standards as a Federal Firearms Licensed as a dealer? 

Ms. Skeels: That is what it is, sir. 

Mr. Hosfelt: So it's the same thing? 

Ms. Skeels: It's a FFL. 

Mr. Hosfelt: It's the same standards as any dealer, any storefront dealer? 

Ms. Skeels: Yes, sir. 
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Mr. Hosfelt: Thank you. 

In Opposition - None 

Public Hearing Closed on Application C-17-07 

Mr. Buckson: I recommend that we approve the application based on the fact the 
Applicant has met all regulatory requirements including local and federal and 
should be permitted to exist. I do this on the .. . I make a recommendation of 
Conditional Approval of C-17-07 Home Occupation for a Firearms Broker with 
no Retail Sales, office located outside the Growth Zone Overlay District. It's 
based on Exhibit A, it's based on Exhibit Band the Findings of Fact located 
within your packet is my recommendation, my Motion. 

Mr. Banta: Mr. Buckson, just one quick question. Can you include the alarm 
system in there? She said she was going to do it. If that' s an issue don't worry 
about it. 

Mr. Buckson: It is not an issue, I assume we will put it in as the Applicant has 
described. So yes, part of the motion would be to include some sort of alarm 
system that the applicant has described in her testimony; seconded by 
Mr. Sweeney. 

Roll Call 

Mr. Angel: Yes, this is a home business and we've also denied other home 
businesses in our tenure too on certain issues, so because of the possibility of the 
assault weapons I will say no to this. 

Mr. Buckson: Yes, based on my previous motion. 

Mr. Hosfelt: Yes, based on the testimony of the Applicant, Staffs 
recommendations. 

Mr. Howell: Yes, based on comments from the Applicant. 

Mr. Pepper: Yes, based on comments from Mr. Buckson, the Applicant's 
testimony and no opposition, I vote yes. 

Mr. Sweeney: Yes, based on Mr. Buckson's motion, the conditional approval of 
the Regional Planning Committee, the Staff recommended approval, no public 
opposition and the steps taken by the Applicant to make sure she follows all the 
rules. 
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Mr. Banta: Yeah, based on the Regional Planning Commission, Staff 
Recommendation, Commissioner Buckson's comments and motion as well, I vote 
yes. 

Roll Call reveals six (6) yeas; one (1) nay. Application C-17-07 has been 
approved. 

PETITION FOR CONDITIONAL USE REQUIRING SITE 
PLAN APPROVAL 

Mr. Sweeney: 
1. Application#/ Name: CS-18-02 / Diamond State Engineering; 

Applicant/Owner: Diamond State Engineering I Diamond Limited 
Peachtree, LLC; Zoning District/Proposed Use: BG (General Business) / 
Engineering Office & Contracting with Storage Building; Area & 
Location/ ID#: 2.70± acres on east side of Peachtree Run (Co. Rd. 105) 
approx. 450' north of Lochmeath Way, southeast of Camden / NM-00-
094. 00-02-4 3. 00-000 

Ms. Keifer: Application CS-18-02 is a Conditional use Site Plan Application. 
The use is an engineering and contracting establishment. The proposal for 
construction is a storage building. The site is 2. 7 acres on the east side of 
Peachtree Run, north of Lochmeath Way, southeast of Camden. The site is zoned 
BG, General Business. The Planning Commission took testimony on February 1st 

and at their February 8th business meeting voted to recommend conditional 
approval. That recommendation also included approval of the requested sidewalk 
waiver. So again this comes with a recommendation for approval. I'm happy to 
answer any questions you might have. 

Mr. Sweeney: Ms. Keifer, on the letter that went to the Applicant for the, I guess 
the announcement of their approval depending the outcome of this hearing there 
was a section that included the requirement for approval from DELDOT which I 
understand is entrance permits, Kent Conservation which has to do with 
impervious service and all that but also included DNREC for the septic system 
approval and the Division of Public Water which I've never heard of until I saw 
that on the application. What is the Public Water? I don't see that on the Staff 
recommendation that came to us, I was wondering what that was about. 

Ms. Keifer: I'm not certain what letter you' re referencing. We did recommend, 
and the Planning Commission recommended as well because of the location and 
the age of the septic system they simply get confirmation. Unless public water is 
impacted we wouldn' t require the Division of Public ... 

Mr. Sweeney: Mr. Hartley wait, you' ll get a chance. 

(Applicant provided copy of letter to Ms. Keifer) 
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Mr. Sweeney: I was just curious why it would show up on something to the 
applicant but not in the conditions of approval from Staff and the document that 
came to us. 

Ms. Keifer: Alright, that's actually the original Staff recommendation report. I 
would say that was included in error. The DNREC approval for septic we are 
recommending because of the age and location of the septic system. Public Water 
is not necessary. 

Mr. Sweeney: Perfect. Second question, there was also at the bottom of that 
document. Chris, don't throw it away yet. It says that significant construction 
must begin within one year, I think, of the application date which was in 
September, but our document says Staff recommendation that says 18 months. 
Which, why the difference? 

Ms. Keifer: I can't explain the discrepancy. The code requires final plan 
approval within 18 months of preliminary plan approval and construction has to 
commence within 18 months of final plan approval. 

Mr. Sweeney: Of that date? 

Ms. Keifer: Yes. 

Mr. Sweeney: Perfect. The other questions I had, do either of those, the DNREC 
requirement or the, we're going to throw out the Public Water one, do they fit into 
any of the Staff recommendation compliant request for, like "a5", for all 
requirements, regulations, recommendations submitted by any agency or... Ifl 
approve that with those five conditions under subsection "a," even though I, do I 
have to specifically say, except for those five agencies that were listed? 

Ms. Keifer: No. 

Mr. Sweeney: No? Thank you very much. 

Mr. Buckson: Ms. Keifer, in keeping with the sewer requirement. So we have an 
applicant that's getting ready to come before us who's an existing business and 
looking to put up a shed, not a shed a pole barn, somewhat make an improvement 
on the facility, on the site itself. The pole barn itself will not require any access to 
sewer at all, this request here tonight will not, to my understanding will not 
impact the sewer at all, but because the Applicant's coming in to make an 
improvement we're going to then add this sewer as a part of that condition just to 
see whether or not it's functioning correctly, that's what we're doing? 

Ms. Keifer: He doesn't have to hook into our sewer system. He has an existing 
septic system I believe it's under the graveled area so that's why we 
recommended we simply get confirmation from DNREC since they're expanding 
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the use, given the location of the system. It's not an unusual recommendation for 
an older septic system just to get confirmation that it's still functional. 

Mr. Buckson: In wanting to make sure that businesses have an opportunity to 
expand and not get kind of obstructed, and I'm not saying this is an improper 
request for something we haven't done. The pole barn itself is not impacting the 
sewer at all, it's just the basic fact the applicant came in, wants the pole barn and 
because of that . .. If they didn't come in for the pole barn, or they did come in for 
the pole barn, the septic is what it is. 

Ms. Keifer: Correct. 

Mr. Buckson: It is what it is. It will remain what it is. So if it were to fail it 
would be on the applicant, right . . . 

Ms. Keifer: Yes. 

Mr. Buckson: ... to seek DNREC, so requiring it doesn't mean anything because 
if it failed they'd have to get it fixed, they'd have to go through DNREC. 
DNREC would either issue a permit for a new one, if it could not be done and 
they'd have to tie in. So my concern maybe is requiring a business that's 
expanding to have to jump through another hurdle of proving that they're septic is 
working just so they can put up a pole barn that has no impact on the sewer. I 
understand it's a nice thing but at the same time, it is maybe something that gets 
in the way. It's another one of those hurdles. On this particular case, and I'm not 
saying on all cases but maybe in this particular case isn't required. Just 
conversation because I think you answered the question that I asked you. I 
understand why the County, and I don't find fault with you, it's our job to look at 
it in a different angle. So I'm just putting it out there for food for thought. It will 
be up to Commissioner Sweeney to discuss or not discuss or what have you. 
Thanks. 

Mr. Hosfelt: Ms. Keifer based on Commissioner Buckson's comments and yours 
as well, is there a cut-off or is there a standard that you use to justify whether or 
not an applicant would have to go through this process that we just discussed? 

Ms. Keifer: Do you mean just to get confirmation on the septic system, on the 
state of the septic system? 

Mr. Hosfelt: Yes, if we talk about the state, if we talk about the age of the septic 
system, is there a standard we go by? 

Ms. Keifer: There's nothing in Code. If nothing else, a lot of what we try to do is 
protect people from something that might happen down the road. There's not a 
hard and fast rule. 
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Mr. Hosfelt: Thank you. 

Public Hearing Open on Application CS-18-02 

In Favor 

02/27/2018 

Thomas Hartley, 1338 Lochmeath Way, Dover, DE: This whole thing started 
out as a pole barn. As I understand there's now two parallel paths, and so ifl'm 
talking about the wrong thing now someone just let me know. Basically, we find 
out that we were noncompliant when we went to file for the building permit to get 
rid of a trailer and a shed that's falling down and put up a new pole building. So 
we're doing a site plan approval to get a, to be conforming or be okay because 
before, we were illegal or nonconforming or something else. So one of the things 
we've paid money for variances and waivers and I just want to make sure because 
we sort of have documents that tell us that if we don't start construction on this 
building we've ... If our building had been built in 19 ... Or say 2005 rather than 
1965 than this building process, I wouldn't be here. The building plan could have 
been much, much easier. I just want to make sure . .. Parts of this ... The 
documents, as I read them say that ifl don't build the building than none of this 
has happened, and the 10 hearings that I've been to is ... There's no reason to 
come here. I just want to make sure that whatever we've done so far to make ... 
So you guys approve of what we've been doing for the last 50 years, actually 48 
is okay even if we don't build this building because quite frankly the bigger part 
of this process has been getting site plan approval for our building that predates 
the rules that were made. So that's just a question that I have. I want to make 
sure that that doesn't go away. I think we've got the answer because the one 
piece of paper that we have that's dated in September which is, it's the 
application, Al 734, Findings, page 4, it says the variance will expire one year if 
no substantial construction or change of use is commenced within that period of 
time. Well, first off, you know, it says if no substantial construction OR change 
of use is commenced within that period of time. We never wanted to change any 
use we just want to be allowed to do what we've been doing since the building 
was built in '64, we actually didn't start occupying the building until '78, it just so 
happens the previous guy was doing the same thing that we were doing, the 
previous owner, I'm sorry. So, that's good. The septic system's working. We had 
somebody come in about a year ago and clean the thing out. Same way with 
some of the other variances like the ones to cut it out to plant trees in the parking 
lot and we've just by chance, you know, couple three years ago, saw the parking 
lot was in bad shape, we repaved it. Likewise, with the septic system, we saw that 
it wasn't flowing right and we had to clean it out more often. So they came in, 
gave it a good cleaning and so we're good to go. But we haven't really changed 
this building going back to the first reason why we were in here to just put in a 
shed. We don't really anticipate expanding staff in that office. Most of our staff 
isn't even in the office, there's probably 15 staff, maybe 20 in the office and 
probably 30 that work at job sites around the County and State. So, the system, 
the new structure, the shed, the pole building should not impact the sewer or the 
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drinking water or the trees in the parking lot or the parking lot. It's a shed, it's a 
pole building. It's going to be nicer than the trailer that we have there now, 
there's a picture of, and nicer than the lean-to that we have that's falling down. 
So, we're just trying to improve, kind of clean up our stuff a little bit so we have a 
little bit more efficient place to work out of. I'm available for your questions. 

Mr. Sweeney: So, Ms. Keifer, this is where the question of the dates came from, 
so it says the final plan must be approved within 18 months. Do we have the final 
plan? 

Ms. Keifer: That would follow tonight. 

Mr. Sweeney: Follow tonight. So you have 18 months from tonight to get that 
done and then after that' s approved it re-starts the clock for another 18 months for 
construction start? 

Ms. Keifer: That's correct. The 12 months refers not to this process but to the 
variances that were granted. The code allows for variances to last for one year. I 
would suggest that making application the variances were from site plan 
requirements and various conditions of approval for the use. Getting through this 
process has met that standard so I wouldn' t worry about the 12 months. 

Mr. Sweeney: Okay. So, Mr. Hartley, you understand that, right? 

Mr. Hartley: I just ... I'm good that we get it on record because we've enforced 
things that don' t exist in writing anywhere. So, since we've got something in 
writing I want to make sure that we're kind of overriding that here and the fact 
that planning things that we 've done to make sure that we do have Site Plan 
Approval and that we're legal to be where we' re at, we're compliant or whatever 
you guys call it. 

Mr. Sweeney: Okay, there are another, a few other conditions listed. Storage of 
all vehicles and constructions equipment shall be behind the building set-back 
line. I think you're okay with that one. All fabricating shall be enclosed within a 
building. These are within a report, probably that you have. There all conditions, 
there all standard stuff, there's nothing that's . . . 

Mr. Hartley: We do, but there ' s occasionally some construction that, or 
fabrication that might go on because of the fact there' s fresh air, if there's fumes 
and the guys are like cutting galvanized conduit. It' s a noxious fume and if it' s 
mitigated in the air it's not like we cut a lot . .. 

Mr. Sweeney: Right. 

Mr. Hartley: But there' s stuff that we've been doing for 40 years. I didn't think 
when we put up this shed that we had to change the way we were doing things. 
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You know, if Warren Price paints cars in his parking lot, right in front of us, I 
don't have any problem with that because it dries long before it ever gets close to 
our property. But if we were spraying something, I mean, we might still do that 
outside if it was ... We've had pieces of equipment, steel and that kind of thing 
we've put together that would be too big to go in the building, so yeah, we might 
actually still fabricate like we've been doing for the last 40 some years ... I mean, 
none of the neighbors are complaining about it. I thought that that was such a 
minor issue that I didn't really bring that up. 

Mr. Sweeney: Sarah that would be a complaint driven response? 

Ms. Keifer: In general we are complaint driven. We are not out looking for 
violations. 

Mr. Sweeney: Right, and the next item is all outdoor storage visible from access 
streets and adjacent properties, you're on a comer there, aren't you or the next lot 
down from the comer? 

Mr. Hartley: Really we're the third lot because Warren Price has his large 
parking lot that they use for motorcycle training and that kind of thing on the 
comer and then the next building down is the old Tri Supply which has been 
converted to a Church - but don't tell anybody - and then our building. 

Mr. Sweeney: And it goes right up against the river where the ... 

Mr. Hartley: Little Creek, yeah. 

Mr. Sweeney: So, are you adding any trees or ... 

Mr. Hartley: Yeah, I think we're adding 12, I mean like crepe myrtle and ... 

Mr. Sweeney: And that's in keeping with the environment, Ms. Keifer, the 
additional trees? 

Ms. Keifer: That's in keeping and any other requirements have been waived by 
the Board of Adjustment. 

Mr. Sweeney: Perfect. Alright, just wanted to make sure we were clear on that. 
Thank you. 

Mr. Hartley: Thank you. Thanks for your time. 

Clayton Carlson, 1532 Ally Corner Road, Clayton, DE: I just wanted to come 
tonight and talk to you guys, just say I'm an engineer at this company. There's 
probably about, depending on what we've got going on it does fluctuate, 
anywhere between 40 and 65 people we have working with us at any given time. 
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This building we've been trying to build it for right about two years now and one 
of the things it will allow us to do is to have the storage space and capabilities to 
expand our business and do more work and do large projects and so it will quite 
possibly directly result in us having to hire more people out in the field, so if you 
would take that in consideration when you' re voting on that tonight. I would say 
just as an employee of the company it would certainly make our lives easier and I 
would say that within the next few years it would have direct impact on us 
expanding the number of people within our employment. Thank you. 

Mr. Sweeney: Mr. Carlson, one of the questions I should have asked Mr. Hartley, 
there's a request for a waiver of sidewalk . .. does the, what used to be the supply 
company, is now a different use . .. 

Mr. Carlson: The one we' re not going to talk about. 

Mr. Sweeney: The one we' re not going to talk about. 

Mr. Carlson: No, they actually don' t have a sidewalk. 

Mr. Sweeney: They don' t have a sidewalk. And of course the motorcycle lot 
doesn' t have a sidewalk. 

Mr. Carlson: No. I think the closest sidewalk is at the other end of the street 
probably a good half a mile; it' s probably a little farther. 

Mr. Sweeney: You' re talking about the north end where Voshell or Star Hill 
Road and Peachtree Run meet? So the sidewalk that was proposed for your lot 
would end at the tributary to Voshells Mill and what's just on the other side of 
that river or that stream? That's all residential from there .. . 

Mr. Carlson: It is and it' s all wetlands. They actually, Kent Conservation 
District, was out there clearing out the ditch from all the flooding we've had 
because it actually, believe it or not, floods the road and sometimes it floods the 
road to the point where you really want to be careful when you' re driving through 
it. So they were out there cleaning the ditch and I went down there and talked to 
them and even walking through the grass your feet are even sinking several 
inches, it's not good ground there. I mean it would require major, either 
excavation and, you know, refill or build some kind of bridge over it to have a 
sidewalk that would hold up. 

Mr. Sweeney: Alright, thank you. 

Public Hearing Closed On CS-18-02 

Mr. Sweeney: Ms. Keifer, do I have to include verbally all of those conditions? 
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Ms. Keifer: Definitely the sidewalk waiver, please, and if you don't want to 
require the DNREC Certification I would include that as well. Everything else I 
would say per the Planning Commission' s recommendation. 

Mr. Sweeney: Gotcha. Thank you very much. Move to conditionally approve 
Application CS-18-02 including the waiver for requirement for sidewalk 
installation and no requirement to wait for approval from DNREC for the 
continued use of the on-site septic system. Reason for my motion include 
compliance with the adequate Public Facilities Ordinances, compliance with the 
Comp Plan, RPC recommendation, Staff recommendation without the waiver of 
denial and no public opposition; seconded by Mr. Howell. 

Roll Call 

Mr. Angel: Yes, reasons stated by Commissioner Sweeney. 

Mr. Buckson: Yes, all reasons stated. 

Mr. Hosfelt: Yes, based on the comments by Commissioner Sweeney. 

Mr. Howell: Yes, for reasons given. 

Mr. Pepper: Yes, reasons given. 

Mr. Sweeney: Yes, per my motion. 

Mr. Banta: Yes, based on RPC and Staff comments as well as Mr. Sweeney's 
motion, I vote yes. 

Roll Call reveals seven (7) yeas. Application CS-18-02 has been approved. 

PETITIONS TO AMEND COMPREHENSIVE PLAN MAP 
AND ZONING MAP 

Mr. Banta: 
1. Ordinance LCl 7-25: An Ordinance to amend the Comprehensive Plan 

Map Designation and the Official Zoning Map of Kent County, Delaware 
pursuant to the provisions of Kent County Code, Vol. II, Chapter 205 
Zoning, Article III, Section 205-8 and Section 205-9, and Article XXVIII 
( changes and amendments) effective December O 1, 2000, as amended. 
(Reference: Application#: CZ-17-13 ; Applicant & Owner: Eagle Bldg. 
& Grounds Maintenance/Cedar Cove RV Resort; Proposed Zoning 
Districts: BG (General Business) & AR (Agricultural Residential) ; Area 
& Location / ID#: 16.632± acres (Area of Petition: BG 4.567± acres & 
AR 6.411± acres) on north side of Sudlersville Road (DE. Rt. 300), 
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approx. 1075 ft. west of Owls Nest Road (Co. Rd. 144), southwest of 
Kenton I KH-00-044.00-01-16.06-000) 

Ms. Keifer: Ordinance LCl 7-25 is an application for a re-zoning. The parcels in 
question are just over 16 acres on the north side of Sudlersville Road, west of 
Owls Nest Road, southwest of Kenton. The area of interest in this application is 
currently BN, Neighborhood Business. The proposal is to re-zone just over 4 ½ 
acres to BG and approximately 6.4 acres to AR, Agricultural Residential. The 
Regional Planning Commission took testimony on this application at their 
February 1st hearing and at their February Business meeting voted unanimously to 
recommend a modified approval. The Planning Commission recommended 
denial of the request to zone a portion to General Business or BG, determining 
that that zoning classification was too intensive for the area. But they also 
recommended approval of the request to modify a portion of the property to AR 
zoning determining that request is indeed in keeping with the character of the 
area. So again this comes with a recommendation for modified approval; I'm 
happy to answer any questions you might have. 

Mr. Buckson: Ms. Keifer, could you give me a couple of examples of what may 
be described as intensive use in BN, something that might stand out as 
intensive or something that might not fit the character of the area? 

Ms. Keifer: In BN we, the code does allow for restaurants, probably more 
intensive than most of these package stores ... 

Mr. Buckson: That' s good enough. Currently, a restaurant or package store 
would be permitted based on the zoning? 

Ms. Keifer: Yes. 

Mr. Buckson: Okay, alright, thanks. 

Public Hearing Open on Ordinance LCl 7-25 

In Favor 

Ken Duphily, 2837 Shaws Corner Road, Clayton, DE: On this property, I 
guess I got some bad information to start with at first . We' re building a 
campground out there. I was told I should ask for BG to do all the things that we 
wanted to do on a portion of that property, which really we could do the things 
that we need to do on BN so I'm kind of in favor of what you've already voted 
for. I mean, I'm a happy camper right now today and believe me this has been the 
most trying time. We've had so many things that have interrupted us. Even on 
my way here just a little while ago my wife and granddaughter and I were struck 
in the rear end and the police weren' t even going to let me come here. I'm 
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thinking, "No, God, please what's going on with this?" Whatever you guys 
recommend, I'm good with it. 

Mr. Banta: The amount ofresearch I did on what's being requested I certainly 
comply with what the Regional Planning Commission has recommended. Also, 
there's ***inaudible*** 

Mr. Buckson: I don't intend to change your mind, I intend to support BG because 
I felt based on the testimony and the information I received here tonight that it 
was a fair request. I was going to ask for maybe a reduction from maybe 4 acres 
to something less but if you're sure that you can operate in the fashion that you 
deem necessary under the current zoning I don' t think we should pick a fight at all 
I think we ought to just move forward. So, if you're confident in what you have 
now ... 

Mr. Duphily: Right. Can I ask a question? On BN, I bought this place as a . . . It 
was a club, it was BN, it was a club. I can still do a club? 

Ms. Keifer: Yes. 

Mr. Duphily: That' s all we need to do .. . That's basically what we thought ... We 
were under the impression and led to believe that we needed to be BG to do that. 

Ms. Keifer: No, it was zoned to BN to legalize what was there before. 

Mr. Duphily: The AR, it accommodates the campground that we' re building, that 
puts up right where we need to be. 

Mr. Sweeney: Ms. Keifer, this property was zoned BN in order to accommodate 
the previous use? 

Ms. Keifer: I believe so. That was before I was with the County but I believe that 
was . .. 

Mr. Sweeney: So this is one of those cases where once we zone something it 
stays with it no matter what ... 

Ms. Keifer: Zoning stays with the land for ever. 

Mr. Sweeney: Thank you. 

In Opposition -None 

Public Hearing Closed on LCl 7-25 
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Mr. Banta: I Move to recommend a modified approval of Ordinance LC 17-25 to 
include a Zoning Map Amendment from BN (Neighborhood Business) to AR 
(Agricultural Residential) and Denial of a Zoning Map amendment from BN 
(Neighborhood Business) to BG (General Business); located outside the Growth 
Zone Overlay District. This is based on Exhibit A, Staff Recommendation Report 
dated February 1, 2018, Exhibit B -Public Hearing Testimony dated February 1, 
2018; seconded by Mr. Sweeney. 

Roll Call 

Mr. Angel: Yes, reasons stated by President Banta. 

Mr. Buckson: Yes, for the reasons stated and maybe some of the positive 
comments received from Ms. Ken and Ms. Dana. 

Mr. Hosfelt: Yes, based on the comments provided by President Banta. 

Mr. Howell: Yes, for reasons stated. 

Mr. Sweeney: Yes, for all reasons stated. 

Mr. Banta: Yeah, and I thought you were going to come up here and make some 
comments but I guess you chose not to do that so that's fine. I vote yes. 

Mr. Pepper: Yes. I vote yes based on the comments on testimony, no opposition. 

Roll Call reveals seven (7) yeas. Ordinance LCl 7-25 has been approved. 

Mr. Howell: 
1. Ordinance LCl 7-26: An Ordinance to amend the Comprehensive Plan 

Map Designation and the Official Zoning Map of Kent County, Delaware 
pursuant to the provisions of Kent County Code, Vol. II, Chapter 205 
Zoning, Article III, Section 205-8 and Section 205-9, and Article XXVIII 
(changes and amendments) effective December 01 , 2000, as amended. 
(Reference: Application #: CZ-18-01; Applicants & Owners: Joanna, 
Mark R. & John A. Reedy, Lisa P. Madden, and Jeanette F. Martin; 
Proposed Zoning District: AR (Agricultural Residential); Area & 
Location/ ID#: 0.44± acres on south side of Strauss Ave. (Co. Rd. 186), 
across from Taraila Road (Co. Rd. 185), Marydel / WD-00-089.12-01-
01.00-000) 

Ms. Keifer: Ordinance LCl 7-26 is another re-zoning request. The site is .4 acre 
on the south side of Strauss A venue across from Taraila Road in Marydel. It is 
currently zoned RSl, Single Family Residential. The request is to re-zone to AR, 
Agricultural Residential. The Regional Planning Commission took testimony at 
their February 1st hearing and at their February 8th Business meeting voted 
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unanimously to recommend approval determining that the request is indeed in 
keeping with the surrounding area. So again this comes with a recommendation 
for approval ; I'm happy to answer any questions you might have. 

Public Hearing Open on Ordinance LCl 7-26 

In Favor 

John Reedy, 5971 Underwoods Corner Road, Smyrna, DE: This was some 
land that when my father died he willed it to our family. We had a manufactured 
home on it and we demoed it, we got a demo permit and found out that the zoning 
wasn't correct so we couldn't put in another manufactured home. We're asking 
that you allow us to do that. 

In Opposition - None 

Public Hearing Closed On Ordinance LCl 7-26 

Mr. Howell: I Move that we approve Ordinance LCl 7-26, which is an Ordinance 
to amend the Comprehensive Plan Map Designation and the Official Zoning Map 
of Kent County Delaware pursuant to the provisions of Kent County Code, Vol. 
II, Chapter 205 Zoning, Article III, Section 205-8 and Section 205-9, and Article 
XXVIII (changes and amendments) effective December 01 , 2000, as amended; 
seconded by Mr. Pepper. 

Roll Call 

Mr. Angel: Yes, reasons stated by Commissioner Howell and no opposition. 

Mr. Buckson: Yes, all reasons stated. 

Mr. Hosfelt: Yes, based on the comments by Commissioner Howell. 

Mr. Howell: Yes, reasons stated. 

Mr. Pepper: Yes, reasons stated and sounds to me it' s just like common sense. 
Thank you. 

Mr. Sweeney: Yes, for all reasons stated. 

Mr. Banta: For all reasons stated, I vote yes. 

Roll Call reveals seven (7) yeas. Ordinance LCl 7-26 has been approved. 
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KCSDDl PROPOSED SEWER EXTENSION 

Mr. Buckson: 
1. Resolution 3670, Kent County Sewage Disposal District No. 1 

(KCSDDI) Proposed Sewer Extension - Cypress Branch/South Central 
Area - DELDOT Maintenance Yard 

Ms. Golt: The Engineering Division received a request from the State of 
Delaware Department of Transportation for Kent County Sewer Service an 
extension to Cypress Branch/South Central Area. The existing maintenance yard 
is located on the east side of Briarbush Road, between the Rising Sun Community 
and the Town of Magnolia. A technical feasibility study was prepared by Staff 
and it examined two alternatives for connection. The proposed infrastructure 
would entail a grinder pump station, a small diameter forcemain, connecting to 
the existing gravity system located at the entrance area of Barrett Farm 
Subdivision. There is adequate capacity in the sanitary sewer system to 
accommodate the proposed estimate of nine (9) ED Us to equivalent dwelling 
units, approximately nine (9) houses. The applicant has formally agreed with the 
study' s findings and DelDOT is responsible for the design, permitting and 
construction of the proposed infrastructure. Additionally, the applicant is 
responsible for the payment of the institutional sewer permit and both the impact 
fees for the connection. The owner is responsible for ownership and maintenance 
of all infrastructure including pump stations located on their property. On 
January 10th the Sewer Advisory Board approved recommendation of the 
extension to Levy Court and on January 31 st we approved Resolution 3669 calling 
for this Public Hearing. It was postponed to the State and the matter is being 
presented tonight for comment. 

Mr. Buckson: A question, maybe more of a comment during public testimony 
tonight we're going to hear from some folks in the area who are going to make a 
request so I'd like to give them time and opportunity just to speak on it. 
Ms. Golt' s aware of it. I 'm not sure if there's a fix but just to give you a heads 
up. 

Public Hearing Open on Resolution 3670 

Stephen Britt, 121 Continental Drive, Newark, DE: DelDOT is looking to 
install a new truck wash on their facility and looking to have that operational for 
the upcoming winter so that's what's prompting the installation of the grinder 
pump. They will be abandoning their existing septic facilities on-site and 
pumping the sewage to manhole 64 on Pacer Wyatt shown on the map on the 
screen. We are currently talking with the consultant for the property right where 
the 2" forcemain ??? in green, that's the future site of the Caesar Rodney 
Elementary School. They are also looking to install a pumping station for a small 
diameter forcemain so we met with them last week to coordinate our efforts at the 
behest of the County. There' s no need for two separate forcemains running down 



26 02/27/2018 

the road there. So we've met with them and started coordinating our calculations 
to combine the two forcemains into one, likely it will be a 3" forcemain running 
on the south side of Briar bush Road. 

Mr. Banta: Any questions for the Applicant? Mr. Pepper and I both have the 
same one I think. Mr. Pepper? 

Mr. Pepper: Yes, my question is, are you going to use this as a, area as a wash 
area for the trucks, the highway trucks? 

Mr. Britt: Yeah, it will be for the highway trucks, as well as for the domestic 
flows on-site for the two ??? buildings. 

Mr. Pepper: My question would be, and this is to Staff, I would imagine there 
would be high salt solution coming off those trucks especially as they're washed 
off in the winter time and stuff. Are we equipped at the plant to handle large 
amounts of salt in the system? 

Ms. Golt: In terms of the salts in here, the system is going to be designed with 
additional installation inside the grinder pump and I think the gentleman from 
JMT can probably address that a little bit more. But yes it would be addressed to 
take care of that before it got to the wastewater treatment plant. 

Mr. Britt: Yeah, we were planning to, for the pump handling and the truck wash, 
there will be a sentiment trap, an oil trap and a sentiment trap to trap both any 
motor oils coming off which we don' t want to put into the sewer system as well as 
a sentiment trap to collect any large debris and any larger*** of salt that don' t 
become part of the water settle-out. 

Mr. Banta: Whose job is it to make sure that those traps are cleaned and 
maintained on a regular basis? 

Mr. Britt: DelDOT will be responsible for the maintenance and care of all the 
equipment on their property including the traps. I don't know if Kent County 
inspects them. 

Mr. Banta: So, those traps would seem to me, particularly in a major snowfall, in 
brine and salt and so forth, it would seem to me, there ' s going to be a lot of build
up which needs to be either removed or purified before it goes into our 
wastewater treatment facility. So, do you know or don' t you know how that 
functions? 

Mr. Britt: Well, they will regularly schedule clean-out of those traps where any 
debris that has settled into the sentiment trap will be vacuumed out and hauled. 
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Mr. Banta: So if we have a three day snow event and brine, salt, so forth 
spread out on the highways in Kent County or that part of the County, is it my 
understanding that those trucks will get cleaned not on a daily basis but at the end 
of the snowfall they will be cleaned and then put back into storage. Is that ... You 
would not do that each time, after each snowfall, you would wait till the 
snowstorm has stopped and then do your cleaning. So, my concern is, the Plant is 
very delicate, it's very delicate. I mean, we were going to have another chip plant 
come through Kent County years ago and that was denied because of all the bad 
ingredients that were coming out of the chip plant. Salt is not a good ingredient. 
I just want to make sure it's protected so that our plant's protected. Thank you. 

In Opposition 

Walt Slesak, 133 Whitetail Lane, Magnolia, DE: One of the concerns that we 
have as the HOA and as homeowners in that development, we are petitioning the 
neighbors right now to put in County sewer because we ... there are quite a few 
neighbors that are having septic systems failing. So our concern was, is why 
couldn't they not run the forcemain down Briarbush and come right off the back 
of that Mystic Lane and use the gravity feed system and feed the DelDOT yard 
that way and that will bring us closer to having the sewer line to our development. 
They won't have to cut the road up on Banning Road to do a ... to get the pipe to 
the forcemain to where it's got to tie in. So I would ask that we, before we 
approve this that we look at that other option to see if this is more feasible. 
Because they're going to have to cut the road on Banning to get the pipe, either 
they're going to have to do a road bore or they're going to have to cut the road. If 
they cut the road we're going to have an issue there. You know how it is when 
they patch a road first of all, you know. I'm asking the Commissioners here to 
ask them to please table it for a month to see if there's another way they can do 
this and tie it into the gravity feed system so future . .. Once I get ... I got 13 
petitions signed ... signatures from the homeowners. I haven't been able to get 
everybody because everybody's busy. So, I would ask that if we could see if 
there's another route to tie this into gravity system. They won't have to run I 
don't know how many 1 000s of feet down Briarbush and tie it in down to the 
Barrett Farm. We could tie it in right in to the Mystic Lane and then that would 
bring the sewer pipe closer to our development. That's all I ask. 

Mr. Buckson: So, I sort of spoke with Ms. Golt and yourself about this issue. 
Timing is a problem given the fact the School District is set to break ground here 
relatively soon. I don't know that DelDOT is the biggest problem; I think it's the 
School District and their interaction with this process. But I believe and am I 
correct on the assumption that it is not a fatal ask to delay this temporarily rather 
in a short stay to see if there is a fix, is that a fair request? A possible request I 
should say. 

Ms. Golt: So if the hearing were postponed two weeks just to look at the 
feasibility without doing a full, looking at the analysis not necessarily doing a full 
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report on it that would allow us to look at it. However the original TFS did look 
at an option of running it back through the other subdivision. It doesn't ... going 
the other way doesn' t necessarily assist the subdivision. The most it's going to 
get them is maybe one length of pipe and a manhole. And it's still going to put 
out there that we need to find funding and have to fully design that project for that 
subdivision. So we can look at that further to see if there ' s any other benefits that 
I'm not seeing, and I'm assuming like I said, that would be a desktop analysis of 
two weeks. And then we would be coming back here and assuming there ' s no 
change that we wouldn't go back by Sewer Advisory Board. 

Mr. Buckson: This is complicated. 

Mr. Slesak: Yes, I understand. 

Mr. Buckson: We're offering you right now, if the Commissioners would agree, 
would be a brief tum-around to give you a fair look at this to see if there is 
something obvious. Because I actually looked at it, Commissioner Pepper' s lot is 
in that picture, my lot' s in that picture, of course your lot's in that picture. All of 
them have been on septic. Commissioner Pepper' s area' s now served with sewer 
but you're right they' re all going to eventually going to need to tie in for some ... 

Mr. Slesak: Exactly. 

Mr. Buckson: ... these developments can't happen anymore. But they are there. 
So, anyway the ask would be if Ms. Golt would agree and the Commissioner 
would agree would be exactly what you described, a temporary stay, a serious 
look then bring this back for... If this comes back, bring it back. Is that fair? Is 
that doable? 

Ms. Golt: I believe that' s doable based on my conversation with Steve from JMT. 

Mr. Buckson: And JMT's still here and JMT's okay . . . I know it' s not exactly 
the best thing you want but you're okay with that, that's not a fatal ask. 

Mr. Britt: Yeah, the two week stay would be okay. DelDOT' s primary concern is 
that that pump station is installed and operational to discharge somewhere by 
November 1st for the upcoming winter. 

Mr. Buckson: Okay. 

Mr. Slesak: Alright. Thank you. 

Mr. Buckson: That' s something we'll have to ask of the Commissioner, so how 
would I. .. After this, eventually I'm going to ask for that so I'm not asking for 
that now but eventually I would ask and then you' d decide if you agree. I'm done 
with my question then. 
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Mr. Sweeney: I'm okay with the two week delay. My only question is this, if we 
design to accommodate the development of Doe Run and he does not get his 
approvals do we drop back to the original plan which would I assume would be 
less expensive due to right-of-ways and ... Or will the two weeks give you 
enough time to do both the feasibility study and a cost analysis? 

Ms. Golt: What we'll be looking at is more of cost analysis. We won't do the full 
feasibility study but we'll do a cost analysis based on a sketch and proposed 
lengths of pipe. What may not come into play is that, and it's hard to factor into, 
is the time. There's wetlands located near the subdivision that contains Mystic 
Lane... See if I can talk and point with the mouse at the same time. This is a 
wetland area, so the question would be timing of getting permits to cross that and 
how that might impact the project as well. 

Mr. Sweeney: Alright. So in the meantime, is two weeks going to be enough 
time for you to get the remainder of approvals in the households in your 
development? 

Mr. Slesak: I've got 13 approvals with me right now. How much do you need 
out of 31 houses? 

Mr. Sweeney: 13 out of 31 . So if it's possible, if you could get those approvals 
before you come back in two weeks that would certainly lend credibility to your 
case. But if you can' t get those approvals, then we have to do this based on the 
assumption that you' re going to get approvals, that you might not, which puts the 
County in a position to have to pay more that's not going to happen in your 
development, understand? 

Mr. Slesak: I understand what you're saying, but if you look at the map up there 
there's also another piece of property on the backside that they' re going to build a 
sub-development, used to be "Camingas" I think it was a Horse Farm there and U 
and I Builders owns that piece of property right there and I talked to him a couple 
months ago and he said that he would definitely be interested in having County 
sewer in there for his new development. And we know how those guys are they 
always ... But my biggest concern, look at the run from where the DelDOT 
pumping station is all the way down towards the development down there towards 
the Barrett Farm that's way shorter going from Mystic Lane up to the DelDOT 
yard. I don't see how it cost more money ... 

Mr. Sweeney: Sometimes it's not about the distance it's about what we have to 
do, so . .. We don't have to decide that tonight. We can ... We have a couple of 
weeks now to access. 

Mr. Angel: Diana, how many signatures does he need, what percentage? He's 
got 13 now out of 31. 
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Ms. Golt: I would say it would probably be preferred that we have 60 percent. 
Now here's the other piece of that. So, once we form a district there we still have 
to do preliminary engineering studies and we still have to get funding and we still 
have to build it. The minimum timeframe for building that infrastructure is 
normally three years. 

Mr. Buckson: Just want to remind the Commissioners that' s what the meeting's 
for. I mean, if we agree to table this tonight, they can ... you can get educated up. 
Ms. Golt' s there. Yes, she's agreed that not only is the plan we're discussing 
tonight a part of your discussion, but an alternate plan could be a part of the 
discussion. We're going to fit it in a tight window and try and get you to the 
table. I'm going to actually reach out to my HOA president and do the same, see 
if he can sit there. But at least we get a chance to talk. I don' t think we need to 
go back over this anymore. I would suggest tonight that' s what the meeting was 
going to be about. I am prepared ... I guess I would be prepared then to make a 
motion to table this. 

Mr. Angel: I'll second it. 

Mr. Buckson: Alright, do I need to give any specifics to the tabling? 

Mr. W. Pepper: Mr. President, can we complete the Public Hearing first? 

Mr. Buckson: Sounds like a good idea. I don' t have to but you're saying so we 
don' t have to open it back up? 

Mr. W. Pepper: So we don't have to re-advertise it. 

Mr. Buckson: I got you. Fair enough. Thank you. 

Public Hearing Closed on Resolution 3670 

Mr. Buckson: I make a Motion that we Table Resolution 3670 and that's 
my motion; seconded by Mr. Angel. 

Roll Call 

Mr. Angel: Yes. 

Mr. Buckson: Yes. 

Mr. Hosfelt: Yes. 

Mr. Howell: Yes. 
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Mr. Sweeney: Yes. 

Mr. Banta: Yes. 
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Roll Call reveals seven (7) yeas. Resolution 3670 has been tabled. 

ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 180 
SANITARY STANDARDS 

Mr. Howell: 

02/27/2018 

1. Ordinance LC18-01, An Ordinance amending Kent County Code, 
Volume I, Chapter 180 Sanitary Standards, Article III, §180-10, Use of 
public sewers, B. Discharge and pretreatment prohibitions, (1) General 
discharge prohibitions, (b) Specific substances prohibited from discharge 
to the POTW [ 11]; § 180-12, Industrial wastewater discharge permits, A. 
General; and replacing Table 180-III-1 in the Appendix to show 
Maximum Allowable Industrial Limits (MAIL) 

Ms. Golt: Before you tonight is an Ordinance to amend Chapter 180 of the 
County Code. Chapter 180 is the Sanitary Sewer Standards for the use of public 
sewers. What we're doing is we're taking references in Section 180-10 for final 
mass limits where we've specified the names of significant industrial users. 
We're taking that section out, we' re moving it to another and what we're actually 
doing is no longer listing the specific industries, we're going with a General Table 
which talks about the parameters in terms of the nitrogen or the metals that we 
want to limit that are going into .. . And I misspoke, not the nitrogen, it's really 
about the metals. We're looking at Arsenic, Cadmium, Chromium, Copper, Lead, 
Mercury, Molybdenum, Nickel, Selenium, Silver, Zinc and Cyanide and those are 
all incorporated into the new Table. 

Public Hearing Open on Ordinance LC18-01 

In Favor- None 

In Opposition - None 

Public Hearing Closed on Ordinance LC18-01 

Motion was made by Mr. Howell to approve Ordinance LC18-01; seconded by 
Mr. Sweeney. 

Roll Call 

Mr. Angel: Yes. 

Mr. Buckson: Yeah. 
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Mr. Hosfelt: Yes. 

Mr. Howell: Yes. 

Mr. Pepper: Yes. 

Mr. Sweeney: Yes. 

Mr. Banta: Yes. 

Roll Call reveals seven (7) yeas. Ordinance LC 18-01 has been approved. 

CLOSE PUBLIC HEARINGS 

Old Business - None 

OTHER BUSINESS 

1. 

2. 

Motion by Mr. Pepper to go into Executive Session immediately 
following the Business Meeting for preliminary discussion on site 
acquisition for a publicly funded capital improvement; legal strategy 
session regarding collective bargaining or pending or potential litigation; 
and personnel matters pursuant to 29 Del. C. 10004(b) (2), (4), and (9) ; 
seconded by Mr. Sweeney; carried by roll call vote seven (7) yeas. 

Mr. Pepper Moved to go into Executive Session immediately following 
the Committee Meetings of March 6, 2018 for preliminary discussion 
on site acquisition for a publicly funded capital improvement; legal 
strategy session regarding collective bargaining or pending or potential 
litigation; and personnel matters pursuant to 29 Del. C. 10004(b) (2), (4), 
and (9); seconded by Mr. Sweeney; carried by roll call vote seven (7) 
yeas. 

INFORMATION ITEMS 

Mr. Petit de Mange: Thank you, Mr. President. One of the Commissioners at the 
break had mentioned a potential problem with the minutes from February 20th

. 

I've looked at the minutes and I think they're fine. You' ll just have to understand 
that was a Combined meeting and there was a Committee meeting that began 
first, followed by the Roll Call and Determination of Quorum which was covered. 
There was some indication that the names were not indicated who was present 
but it is in the minutes on the second page, I just want to point that out. Second 
item, I just want to call to your attention those of you who may have signed up to 
attend the Chamber of Commerce Legislative Luncheon on Thursday, March 1st

, 

just want to remind you of that. It begins at 11 o ' clock at Dover Downs. This is 
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the session where we have the Senators and Representatives from Kent County 
there, present to answer questions from the Chamber members. Hopefully you 
can all attend and look forward to seeing you there. Thank you very much. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS - None 

COMMISSIONER COMMENTS - None 

Motion to Adjourn was made by Mr. Angel; seconded by Mr. Sweeney, 
Mr. Howell and Mr. Hosfelt; carried by roll call vote seven (7) yeas. 8:47 p.m. 

~c/a,,0)~ 
-~ Wootten 

Kent County Clerk of the Peace 




